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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of CASA GRANDE GRACE PRMTE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying f,rnancial statements of CASA GRANDE GRACE PRIVATE
LIMITED ("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023 and the Statement

ofProfit and Loss for the year ended, including the statement olOther Comprehensive Income, the Cash

F-low Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind

AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting standards
prescribed under section 133 ofthe Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015, as amended. and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs ol the
Company as at March 3l't 2023, its Profit including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financiat Statements'
section ofour report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued
by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thereunder. and u.e
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code ol
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit ofthe financial statements of the cunent period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit ofthe financial statements as a w
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

hole. and in forming our opinion thereon. an<l e do not

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the company as it i
company.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the inlormation included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do no1

express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

inlormation and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, rl'e conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31,2022, and lhe
lransilion date opening balance sheet as ofApril I , 2021 , is included in these lnd AS financial statements.
'l-hesc statements are based on the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. We audited the financial statements for the year ended March 3l .

2022 and fbr the year ended March 31,2021, issued an unmodified opinion on those audited financial
statements. These financial statements have been restated to comply with Ind AS, and we have audited
the adjustments to the said comparative financial information lbr the difference in Accounting Principles
adopted by the Company upon transitioning to Ind AS.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's board ofdirectors is responsible lor the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation ofthese Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view' of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act read with rule 3 ofthe Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules.20l5 as amended.

'Ihis responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other inegularities; selection and application ofappropriate accounting policies; making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ol'
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. management is responsible for assessing thefompany's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable. matters related b g{ng conceni and
using the going concem basis ofaccounting unless management either intends to liquiAate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ' 

I
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial rep'orting process.



Auditor's Responsibitity for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate.

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain prof'essional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and pertbrm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error.

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override

of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. tJnder section 143(3XD of the Act. we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on 'whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modiry our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date ofour auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
lo cease to conlinue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves lair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
planning the scope of our audit work and in evah.rating the resul

effbct ofany identified misstatements in the financial statements.

materiality and qualitati actors in (i)
ts of our work; and (ii) evaluatc the

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identiS during our audit.



We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related

sa f-e g uard s.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Govemment of lndia in terms of sub-section (l I ) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we

enclose in the Annexure - B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe said

Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour auditi

(b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as appears from our examination ofthose books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounti

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 I ,

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over linancial reporting of the

Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, reler to our separate Report in "Annexure A" to this report; Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness ofthe company's intemal
financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect Io the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report urder Section 197(t6) of the
Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limit
prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable
to a private limited company.

(r) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule
I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its fi
refer note 34 to the Financial Statemenls.

cial posit n-

IL The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative co tracts lbr which
there were any material foreseeable losses

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

lrL



iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

i. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries'. with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall.
whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifled
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries'
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

ii. No funds have been received by the company from any person or entity. including
foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Benel'iciaries' or provide any guarantee.

security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act. 2013 is not applicable
for the year under consideration.

\1. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 (as amended), which
provides for books olaccount to have the feature ofaudit trail, edit log and related matters
in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with
et'fect from financial year beginning April I , 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule I I
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not
applicable.

For ABCD & Co,

Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l64l5S

/-{
Vinod R- Partner

Membership No: 2l4l
Place: Chennai.
Date'.25-07-2023
UDIN: 232l4143BHAOXI{3749
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section

of our report to the members of CASA GRANDE GRACE PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) ofSub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")
We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of CASA GRANDE
GRACE PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31,2023, in conjunction with our
audit olthe Ind AS financial statements of the Company lor the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants ol India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance

oladequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively lor ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(t0) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perlorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements and their operating elfectiveness. Our audit olintemal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS hnancial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement.
including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to /rovide a basis
for our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial reporting w{th reference to
these Ind AS financial statements. \\a.-.-



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these

Financial Statements
A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
linancial statements includes those policies and procedures that

(l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Rcporting with
Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal linancial controls over tinancial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override ofcontrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation ol the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting *.ith reference to these Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because olchanges in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with relerence to these Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial
controls over financia.l reporting with reference to these lnd AS financial statements were opcrating
effectively as at March 31,2023, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Repo(ing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia.

For ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FirmNo: 0l64l55

&\
Vinod R- Partner
Membership No 2l'4143
Place: Chennai.
Date:25-07-2023
UDIN: 232l4l43BHAOXNI3749



Annexure "8" to the Independent Auditor's Report

( Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our

report to the members of CASA GRANDE GRACE PRMTE LIMITED of even date)

l. F-ixed assets:

a) (A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the

management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us

and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by

us, we report that. the Company has no immovable properties of land and building held

as Property, plant and equipment or Investment Property as at the balance sheet date.

Hence reporting under Clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not revalued

its Property, plant and equipment during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations fumished to us and as represented by the

management, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Companl
for holding benami property under the Prohibition ofBenami Property Transactions Act.
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the queslion ofour commenting
on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements
does not arise.

2. Inventories:

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure olsuch verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of l0% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on such verification.

b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, tiom banks or financial institutions on the basis ofsecurity ofcurrent assets at
any point of time during the year.

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the poffipEny.has
made loans in the nature of unsecured loans to companies and Limited Liabldty Partnership.
The aggregate amount of transaction during the year and balance outstandir{g at the balance
sheet date with respect to loan to holding company, subsidiary 

"o.puqi". 
and fellow

subsidiary companies is mentioned in the following table.



Advances in
nature of loansGuarantee

470.47

1.20

600.00

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the

Subsidiaries

Holding company

Associates

Fellow subsidiaries

Others

year

9.l l

600.00

2 r 00.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in

respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries

- Holding company

- Associates/JointVentures
- Fellow subsidiaries

- Others

(Rs. In Millions)

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the investments

made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all

loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the

company's interest.

c) The terms ol arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are

repayable on demand with interest.

d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment ofprincipal and payment of interest, we

are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more than 90

days.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has

granted the loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifuing any terms or period of repayment aggregating to Rs. 471.67 (ln Million) (100%

to the total loans and advances in the nature ofloans granted during the year). The aggregate

of loans granted to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies

Act,2013 is Rs.471.67 (ln Million)

f; Since the term of arrangement do no1 stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are

repayable on demand, no question of overdue amounts will arise in respect of the loans

granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section I 89 of the

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in spe
", 

oh*r.
investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the pro isions ol sections
I 85 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directiveY-issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions ofSections 73 to 76 or any other l'elevant provisions ofthe

5

2l 00.00



Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposil) Rules, 2015 regarding to the deposits accepted

from the public are not applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books ofaccount maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Govemment for the maintenance ofcost records under section 148 ofthe Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and

maintained. However, we have not canied out a detailed examination of the same.

7. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to inlormation and explanations given to us and on the basis ol our examination
ofthe books of account, and records. the Company has generally been regular [except for
the dues mentioned below in the clause (b) ofpara (vii)] in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Income-Tax, Good and Service tax (GST) and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities.

b) Undisputed amounts payable in arears as on 3 I'r March 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they payable are given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues
Amount
(Rs. itr
millions)

Period of Defaults

Income Tax Act. l96l IT Notice u/s270A 0.26

Central Goods and
Services Act.2017 Interest on GST Pavahle 0.67

FY 2021-22

Central Goods and
Services Act.2017 Interest on GST Pa.vable 0.34

Aprrl2022 to August
2022

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
Good and Service tax (GST) outstanding on account of any dispute.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books ofaccount that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, I 961 (43 of I 961 ).

9.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment ofdues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. -fhe Inter Corporate Bonowings are
repayable on demand and terms and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not
been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to us, such loans and
interest thereon have not been demanded lor repayment during the relevant financial year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not declared as a willlul defaulter by any bank or llnancial instiiution or oiher lender.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to s. the ten1l loans
obtained during the year were applied for the purpose lor which they

d) In our opinion and according to the inlormation and explanations given
on short term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

availed.

us. funds raised

e) The company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joint-ventures and accordingry.

FY 2019-20



paragraphs 3 (ix) (f) olthe Order are not applicable.

10.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way ofan initial public offer or fu(her public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause(x)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fulty, partially, or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly.
paragraph 3 (x) (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

ll.
a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) No report under subsection ( 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with
the central govemment, during the and up to the date of this report.

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us.

no whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions olclause(xii) ofthe Order are not
applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

14.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an intemal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The reports of the intemal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as part of
our audit procedures.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) ofthe Ordeiare not
applicable to the Company.

16.

a) [n our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under secti IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, '1934 

and accordingly, the provisions of cl (xvi) (a) and (b)
ofthe Order are not applicable

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us, the Companl,
ls not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any o ies in the
Group as a CIC. Accordingly,
applicable.

paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (d) of the
ther compan
of thc Order are not



17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding

financial year.

18. There has been no resignation olthe statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

I 9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment offinancial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge ofthe board of
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit
report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and

when they fall due within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date. We, however. state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting
is based on facts up to the date olaudit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance

that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

-)n

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect ol other
than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts to be transferred to a fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Act.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there are no
amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, pursuant to any
ongoing project, to be transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) ofsection 135 ofthe said Act.

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) ofthe Order is not applicable in respect ofthe audit of Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For ABCD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0164

Vinod R
Partner
Membership No: 214143
Place: Chennai
Date:25-07 -2023
UDIN: 232l4143BHAOXI{3749
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Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(AIl amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 3l March 2023 31 March 2022

As at
01 April 2021

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets

Other financial assets

Other assets

Defened tax assets (net)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Other current assets

Current tax asset (net)

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

l 10.54 1 .36

56.90

0.43

41.71

5

6

1

15.59

1.06

42.14

80.7 r

55.48

8 2,378.55 2,120.11 3,869.44

9

l0

ll
4

5

6

t2

123.36

r 46.51

10.71

65.20

42.38

15.00

1,143.16

29t.t9
86.62

9.30

386.s2

67.65

5.05

1,t29.44
149.94

30.76

3,127.65 3,763.66 5,315.77

t3

14

rs4.8,l

0.10

397.1

1.92

0.10

229.s8

5 57.91

0.10

39.62

397.21 229.68 39.72

Particulars

27.19 58.26



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at As at

Notes 31 March 2023 3l M*ch 2022
As at

01 April 2021

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Other fi nancial liabilities

Defened tax liabilities (net)

Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial Iiabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Dues to micro small and medium enterprises

Dues to others

Other fi nancial liabilities
Other cunent liabilities
Liabilities for current tax (net)

832.35 1,140.85

76.11

0.25

351.80

1,184.40 910.78 1,216.96

474.15 677.38 s92.62

l5
l6
7

17

778.17
132.61

15

l8
l8
l6
t7
t2

71.44

137.30

301.28

589.06

73.23

14.31

452.72

10.95

1,440.77

85.33

2,681.46

19.41

97.56

15.30

3,367.22

9.12

4,101,23I
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements l-2

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64l55

2Js7.63 3,5n24___!il!.12-

3 rs4.84 1.92 5 57.91

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors of
For Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20 I 6PTCI 12296

4*t l1
| ,rdt'Y\t"

Gautam AgarwaalVinod R

Partner

Membership Number : 21 41 43

Place : Chennai
Date : 25.07 .2023

Raghunathan
Sumanth Krishna
Director
DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai
Date : 25.07 .2023

Director

DIN: 03064660

YsYl
o



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Statement ofProfit and Loss for the year ended 3l March' 2023

(A ll amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
For the year ended

31 March 2023
For the year ended

3l March 2022

Income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost ofraw materials, components and stores consumed

Construction activity expenses

(lncrease/ decrease in stock offlats, land stock and work-in-
progress and traded goods

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profi t/(loss) before tax
(l) Current tax
(2) Defened tax charge(credit)
Income tax expense

ProfiU(loss) for the year

Earnings per share

Basic, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (In {)
Diluted, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln ()

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64l55

___________1J12.41_ _________2,885.n

27

27

225.20

0.s3

57.14

57.67

167.53

28

16,753

16,753

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20 I 6PTCI 12296

l9
)i

24

25

26

1,640.47

4.t4
3,149.17

2.63

1,644.61 3,151.80

2t
22

23

260.87

1,369.61

(222.78)

1.95

2.01

7.75

193.89

940.24

1,742.09

265.57

90.81

(1s.20)

75.61

189.96

/*l
rnry
,Gautam AgarwaalRaghunathan

Sumanth Krishna
Director

DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date : 25.07 .2023

\YVinod R

Partner

Membership Number : 214143

Place : Chennai

Date i 25.07 .2023

Director
DIN:03064660

uloz
.dF\

3vsV

5.61

0.30

4.10

18,996

18,996

4:---\



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Statement ofChanges in Equity for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a, Equity share capital:

Equity shares of ? l0 each

Numbers Amount
Equity shares of { 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 April 2021
Issue of share capital
As at 31 March 2022

Equity shares of { 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 April 2022
Issue ofshare capital
As at 31 March 2023

b. Other equity

10,000 0.10

10,000 0.10

_______________ 0J0.0 0.10

Total

As at 01 April 2021

Profit for the period

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at 3l March 2022

As at 0l April 2022

Profit for the period

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at 31 March 2023

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 016415S

Vinod R

Partner

Membership Number : 214143

Place : Chennai

Date : 25.07 .2023

39.62

189.96

189.96

229.58

229.58

167 .53

167.53

397.11

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20 I 6PTCI 12296

39.62

r89.96
189.96

229.58

229,58

t67.s3
167.53

397.11

rRaghunathan
Sumanth Krishna
Director
DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date : 25.07 .2023

Gautam Agarwaal

Director
DIN: 03064660

______..________________________

Retained earnings

R."^' t ,t

\



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Ststement ofCash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless olhervtise stated)

Farticulars
As at

3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Operaling activities
Profil(loss) before tax

Adjuslmenls lo reconcile profrt belore tax lo net cash iotes:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Rental Income

Finance income

Dividend income

Finance costs

Wor kin g cap ilal adj uslme nt :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(lncrease)/deoease in other financial assets

(lncrease)/decrease in other current assets

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables

lnuease(decrease) in other financial liability
Increase(decrease) in other current liability
Cash generated from operating rctivities
Income tax (paid/refu nded

Net cash flows from(used in) opersting activities

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(Loan given) /Repayment received

Movement in banl deposits (maturity of more than 3 months)

Dividend Income

Rental lncome

Interest received

Net cash flows fron(used in) investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings

Proceeds(repayment) from short term borrowings

Net cash flows from(used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cssh and cash equivslents at yerr end

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisnation NumbetlQ I 64 I 55

____ul!{L __________122{U

225.20

2.01

(0.06)

(l18.76)
(0.01)

323.48

(58.16)
(2s8.44)

( 15.e7)

17.91

(258.2e\
54.82

(4ee.e 1)

265.5'.7

0.3 0

(0.0s)

(143.42)

263.84

15.51

|,749.33
(0.22)

(55.86)

350.06

0.39
(1,926.45)

(s86.18) 519.00

(81.66) ( 13.s3 )
(667.84) 50s.47

( l l.le)
1,133.86

4.29

0.01

0.06

23.81

(1.23)

(13.72\
(r 5.00)

(229.82)

400.66
(637.s8)

87 .87

(213.14)

383.35

(628.37)

(32.e0)
(378.8n

104.13

42.38

146.51

____r121{!I
(13. r 0)

55.48

42.38

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Grace Privat€ Limited
CIN : U74999TN201 6PTCI 12296

fl''\(
Raghunatha
Sumanth Krishna
Director
DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date : 25.07 .2023

f.t"4-
(t'"' '
Gautam Agarwaal

Director

Vinod R

Partner

Membenhip Number : 214143

Place : Chennai

Date :25.07.2023

0.0s

2.39

DIN: 03064660

/,n
$iw



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to finrnci:rl statcrncnts for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All urnounts ure in Million Indian rupees, unless othcruise slated)

l.Corporate information
Casa Grande Grace Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on 0l September, 2016 under the provisions ofthe
Companies Act applicable in India ("Act"). The registered oflce is located at 5th Floor, NPL Devi, Nerv no -1 Il,
L.B.Road. Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai 600041 .

The Cornparry is engaged prirnarily in rhe business of real estate constructions, developrnelt and other related activities in
I nd ia.

The llnarrcial ststemcnts were approved for i.isue in accotdancc witlr a resolution of the directors o',:25 Jlly,2023

2.Signilicant accounting policies

This note provides a list ofthe significanl accounting policies adopted in the preparation ofrhe financial infolnration. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the periods piesented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
In accordance with the notification issued by the MCA, thc Company has adopted lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
specified under sectiou 133 ol the Act. read u'ith the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

and presentation requirernents of Division ll ol Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (lnd AS compliant Schedule III).

'fhe standalone financial statements of the Cornpany are preparcd and presented in accordance with Ind AS. The standalone

financial statcments have been prepared on the historical ccst basis. except for certain financial instrurnents which are

measured a1 fair values at the end of each reporling period, as explained in the accounting policies belorv. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange lor goods and services. Upto 3l March 2022, the

Conrpany prepared the financial statements in accordance with thc previous GAAP, which includes the standards notified
under the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 and other related provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. These

are tlre Company's first lnd AS financial statements. The statutory date of transition to Ind AS is I st April, 202 I .

2,2 Summary of other significant accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of tinancial statements in conforrnity rvith Ind AS requires thc management to rnake judgments, estimates

and assumptions that affect the reportcii anrounls of revenucs. expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent iiabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best

knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and eslimates could result in the outcomes

requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The cffect of change in an accounting

estimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curren/ non-current classification.

An asset is tleated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended 10 be sold or consunrcd in normal operating cycle
- Held prirnarily for the purpose oftrading
- Expected to be realizcd rvithin trvelve months after the reporling period. or
- Cash or cash equivalcnt unless restricted from being excha ged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period

All otlrer assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal opcrating cycle
- tt is held prirnarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months aftcr the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthc liability lol at least twelve months after the repor.ting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-culrent.



Casa Grande Grace Private Limitcd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

ll amounls are in Million Indian rupees, unless olherv)ise stoted)(A

The operating cycle is th€ time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents. The operating cycle ofthe Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on the size

of the project, type of developrnent, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly. project related assets and

liabilities are classified into current and nol'l-cunent based on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets and

liabilities have been classified into current and noncurrent based on a period of twelve months.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

(c) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment except freehold land are slated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost

comprises purchase price, import duties, non-refundable taxes, borowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and lebates are

deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part ofan itenr of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost ofthe item is

depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are

required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates theln separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
rvhen a major inspection. is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipnrent as a

replacenrent ifthe recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as

incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the

future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and

equipment, including day-to-day repair and mainlenance expenditure and cost of replacing pans, are charged to the

statement of profit and Ioss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowilrg costs directly attributable to acquisition ofprope(y, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to
get ready for its interrded use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to

use.

Advances paid torvards the acquisition of property, plant and equipnrent outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified

as capital advances under other non-current assets.

An item of ptoperty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its usc or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition ofthe
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset) is included in the

income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construclion activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period

is capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other

indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the
construction activil.y nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Costs ofassets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on written down value method using the following useful lives estilnated by the managenlent,

which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except certain categolies ofassets whose

useful life is estimated by the management based orr planned usage and technical evaluation thereon:

Assets Useful life
Buildings 60
Temporary Structures 3

Furniture & Fittings l0
Plant & Machinerv - Civil l2- r5
Oftice Equipment 5

Vehicles 8-10
Computers J
Se;vers and netrvork 6



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to financial statemcnts for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Million lndian rupees, unless olhet-wise slated)

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining period of lease or their estimated useful life (10 years),

whichever is shorter.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment property are

revierved at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible

assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

Intangible assets comprising of computer softrvare are amortized using rvritten down value method over a period of three

years, which is estimated by the management to be the useful Iife ofthe asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of arnortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end

and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are lneasured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is

delecognized.

(f) Investment property

The Property that is held for long term rental yield or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the

Cornpany is classified as an Investment Property. Investmenl properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment prope(ies are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs fbr long-term construction projects if the recognition

criteria are met. When significant parts of the investrnent property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company

depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
profiI or loss as incurred.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period

is capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other

indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the

conslruction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Investmenl properties are de-recognized when thc entity transfers control ofthe same to the buyer. Further the entity also

derecognises investment properties rvhen they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is

recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Reclassification from /to investment prope(y Transfers to (or from) investment property are made only when there is a

change in use. Translers between investment property, owncr-occupied property and invento|ies do not change the carrying
amount ofthe property transferred and they do not change the cost ofthat property for measurement or disclosure purposes

(g) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired.
Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime
expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing tmnsaction. For all
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amounl equal to the l2-month expected credit losses or at
an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 lllareh 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

B- Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are

largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. ln assessing

value in use, the estimated fllture cash florvs are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the tirne value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price,

recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. [f no such transactions can be identified, an ai]propriate
valuation model is used.

lmpairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the

revised carrying amount ofthe asset over its remaining useful life

(h) Leases

The Company assesses at.contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the

right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves -
i. The use ofan identified asset,

ii. The right to obtain substantially all the econornic benefits from use ofthe identified asset, and
iii. The right to direct the use ofthe identified asset

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-temr leases and leases

of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing

the right to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use asscts

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is

available for use). Righlof-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease

incentives rcceived. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter ofthe lease term and the

estimaled useful lives ofthe assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life ofthe assel.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

B. Lcasc liabilities
At tlre commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities rneasured at the present value of lease

payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
paynrents) less any lcase incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts

expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. l he lease paynrents also include the exercise price ofa purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of pcnalties for ternrinating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to termil,ate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commeltcement date because the interest rate irnplicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afler the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretior) of interest and reduced for the lease payments nrade.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if thcre is a modilication, a change in the lease term, a

change in the lcase payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting tiom a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessntent ofan optiotl to purchase lhe underlying asset.



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

C. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases that have a lease

term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases

and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset

are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included under Investment property.

Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease including lease

income on fair value of refundable security deposits, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account

of inflation. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and

recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bonowing offunds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualiSing asset when
substantially all ofthe activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complele.

fi) Inventories
Direct expenditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incuned during the construction
period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the
slatement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the real estate

activity.

i. Work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area (including land) of the real estate development
projects or cost incuned on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized. Work-in-progress is valued at lower ofcost
and net realizable value.
ii. Finished goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

iii. Raw materials, components and stores: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on
FIFO basis.

iv. Land stock: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Land
Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance
under other assets during the course ofobtaining clear and marketable title, free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal
title to the Company, whereupon it is transferred to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

Land,/ development rights received under joint development arrangements ('JDA') is measured at the fair value of the
estimated construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch of the project. The amount
of non-refundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as land advance under other assets and on the
launch of the project, the non-refundable amount is transferred as land cost to work-in-progress/ capital work in progress.
Further, the amount ofrefundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as d"eposits under loans.
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(l) Revenue recognition
A. Revenue recognition
a. (i) Revenue from contracts with custonrers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services ale lransferred to lhe customer
at an amount that reflects the consideralion to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other

credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers

net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are olher promises in the contract that are separate perfomrance obligations to which
a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In dctermining the transaction price, the Company considers the

effects of variable consideration, the existeuce of significant financing components, noncash corrsideration, and

consideratiorl payable to the customer, ifany.

Revenue from real estate development of lesidential unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with transfer of physical possession of the residential unit to the

customer i.e.., handover/ deemed handover of the residential units. Deemed handover of the residential units is considered

upon intimation to the customers about receipt ofoccupancy certificate and receipt ofsubstantial sale consideration.

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area Io the customer, which have been identified by the

Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interelated/ interdependent.

The perfonnance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer

ofcontrol ofthe asset to the customer.

For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Compar)y receives thc consideration in accordance rvith the tenns of the

contract in proportion of the percentage of complelion of such real estate project and represents payments lnade by

customers to secure performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such

consideration is received and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the fequirements ofthe Real Estate

(Regulation and Development) Act, 2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with custorners do

not involve any financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of
finance to/from the customer.

Furlher, for projects executed through joint development orrangemerrts not being jointly controlled operations, wherein the

land orvner/possessor provides land and the Conrpany undertakes to develop prope(ies on such land and in lieu of land

owner providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage ofconstructed area or certain percentage ofthe
revenue proceeds, tlre revenue fiom the development and transfer of constructed area,/ revenue sharing anangement in
e,\change of such development rights/ land is being accounted on gl'oss basis on launch of the project. Revenue is

recognised over time using input method, on the basis ofthe inputs to the satisfaction ofa performance obligation relative to
the total expected inpus to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.

The revenue is measured at the fair value of the land received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalenls
transfened. When the fair value of the land received cannot be measured leliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value
of the esliflrated construction service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equiYalenls
transtbrred. The fair value so estimated is considered as the cost of land in the computation of percentage of completion for'
the purpose ofrevenue recognition as discussed above.

Recognition of revenuc from sale of Ianil and developnrent rights:
Revenue from sale of land and development rights is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of such real estate/property, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buycrs, which generally coincides
with the firming of the sales contracts/agreernents. Revcnue from sale of land and development rights is only recognised
when transfer oflegal title to the buyer is not a condition precedent for transfer ofsignificant risks and rewards oforvnership
to the buyer.

Recognition of revenue from interior works and sale of concrele products and scrap:
Revenue is recognised when control oftht goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to rvhich the Compatly expects to be entitled in exchange fur those goods. Revenue exclLulcs irrdirect taxes arrd is after
deduction olany trade discounts.
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Recognition of revenue from maintenance and other services:

Revenue in respect of maintenance services and other services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the

terms ofthe respective contract as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by delivering the services as per

contractual agreed terms.

Income from Property Development:
The Company has determined that the existing terms ofthe contract with customers does not meet the criteria to recognise

revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of residential and

commercial units as and when the control is passed on to the customers which is linked to the application and receipt of
occupancy certificate.

Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights:
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights as and

when the control is passed on to the customers.

a. (ii) Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company

performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a

contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage

oftime is required before payment ofthe consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the

Company transfers goods or services to the customeq a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the

payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the

contract.

a. (iii) Cost to obtain a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expects

to recover those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters into a new contract, which are

directly related to winning the contract. The asset recognised is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the

transfer to the customer ofthe goods or services to which the asset relates.

b. Lease income
The Company's policy for recognition ofrevenue from operating leases is described in note 2.2(h).

c. Share in profiU loss of Limited Liability Partnerships ("LLPs") and partnership firm
The Company's share in profits/losses from LLPs and patueship firm, where the Company is a partner, is recognised as

incomeAoss in the statement of profit and loss as and when the right to receive its profit/ loss share is established by the
Company in accordance with the terms of contract between the Company and the partnership entity.

B. Other Income
a. Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, is recognised using
the effective interest rate method.

b, Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

(m) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency :

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
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Foreign currency trans4ctions and balances

A. Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
cuffency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction.

B. Convcrsion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

Non-monctary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was

determined.

C, Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign
currency monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

(n) Retirement and other employee benelits

Retirement benefits in the fom of state governed Employee Provident Fund and Employee State lnsurance are defined

contribution schemes (collectively the 'Schemes'). The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to
the Schenres. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expendilure, when an employee renders the

related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess

ofamount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on

project unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan

in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measuremenls of the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. ln accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on

defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required

undel Ind AS compliant Schedule lll, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans

(net oftax) to retained eamings.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried fonvard beyond twelve months, as long{erm employee

benefit for measurement purposes. Such long{enn conrpensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation

using the projected unit credit method, rnade at the end ol each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken

to the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance

sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(o) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises curent tax expense and the net change in the defened tax asset 0r liability during the yeaf,

Current and deferred tax are rccognized in the statement of profit and loss, except rvhen they relate to items that are

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also

recognized in olher comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

A. Cu rrent incomc tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are rneasured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used lo compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax itcms are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Manageinent periodically evaluates positiorrs taken in the tax returns with respect to situalions in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority
rvill accept an uncertain tax treatment. The company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment
by using either most likely rnethod or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the
treatment.
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B. Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at

the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, except when the deferred inconre tax arises from the initial recognition of goodlvill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the

transaction.

Defened income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount ofdeferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part oithe deferred income tax asset to be

utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the

asset is realized or the liability is senled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or in equity) in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) credit is recogllised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence

that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the

carrying amount ofthe MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect

that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. In the same way, Alternate Minimum Tax (AMT) is
recognised for LLP.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits rvill be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estinrate can be rrade of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of thc time value of money is material, provisions are

discounted using a current pre{ax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage oftime is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confinned only by the

occun'ence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probablc that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the

obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases uhere there is a liability that cannot be recognized

because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the

financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying econornic benefits is remote.

lf the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a

provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any

impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not rvholly within lhe control ofthe entity.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation olincome is virtually cettain, related asset is
disclosed.
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A. Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held rvithin a business model whose objective is to hold

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the corltractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a

business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

C. Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cosl or at fair value

through other comprehensive income on initial rccognition.

D. Debt instruments at amortized cost
A 'debt instrument'is nreasured at the amortized cost ifboth the following conditions are met:
i. The asset is held rvithin a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash florvs, and

ii. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amounl outstanding.

After initial nleasurement, such financial assets are subsequenlly mcasured at amortized cost using the effective inter€st rate

(ElR) method. Amortized cost is calcLrlated by taking illto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs

that are an integral par1 of the EIR. Tlre EIR amortization is included in flnancc income in the profit or loss. The losses

arising from impairment are rccognized in the protit or loss. 'Ihis category gcnerally applies to trade and other receivables.

E. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried at cost. Impairment recognized, if any, is reduced fronr

the carrying value.

F. De-rccognition of financial asset

The Conrpany derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash florvs from the financial asset expire or
il transfers the financial asset and the lransfcr qualifies for de-recognition under lnd AS 109.

G. Financial liabilities
lnitiul recoElniliort and meusurerner

Financial liabilitics ale classified, at initial recognition, as tinancial liabilitics at fair value through protit or loss, loans and

borrorvings, or as payables. as appropriate. 'fhe Conrpany's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and

borrowings irrcluding bank overdrafts. The subsequent rneasurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
rvhich is described below.

Subsequent medsuremenl : Non-derit alivc.financial insh'uments

H. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at f'air value through profit or loss include tinancial liabilities helcl lor trading and financial liabilitics
designated upon initial recognition as at fail value through profit or loss. Financial Iiabilities ale classitjed as held tbr
trading it-they are incurred for the purpose of repurcl'las ing in the ncar tenl.

(q) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, trade receivable/trade payable that do not contain a

significant financing component are measured at transaction value and investment in subsidiaries are measured at costing

accordance with Ind AS 27 - separate financial statement.

Subscquent measurement: Non-derivalive rtnancial inslrunvnls
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I. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR') method. Gains and

losses are recognized in profit or loss rvhen the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortization is included as firrance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

J. De-recognition of Iinancial liability

A financial Iiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and lhe recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is recognized in the

statement ofprofit or loss.

K. Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transler a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption thal the transaction to
sell tlre asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
) In the principal nrarket for the asset or liability, or
> ln the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market lbr the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing

the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in

its highest and best use.

The Cornpany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumslances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value. maximising the use ofrelevant observable inputs and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

ln determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are

based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

L. Fair value hierarchy:
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within thc

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest lcvel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statelnents on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measuremcnt as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of lhir value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level ofthe fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(r) Cash dividend to equity holders ofthe Company
The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is
authorized and the distribution is no longer xt the discretion oflhe Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a
liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividcnds are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Conrpany's Board of Directors.
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(s) trarnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a

fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share

during the reporting period. The lveighted average nunrber of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash

that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the

date ofpurchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist ofbalances with banks rvhich are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usagc.

(v) Segment reporting
In accordance rvith lnd AS 108 - Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment information are

identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Company's management to allocate resources to the segments and

assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the

Cornpany's olher components. Results of the operating segments are revierved regularly by the Managing Director who has

been identified as thc chief operating decision maker (CODM), to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the

segment and assess its perfonnance.

Presently, llre Company is engaged in only one segment viz 'Real estote and allied activities' and as such there is no

separate reportable segment as per lnd AS 108 'Operating Segments'. The Company has operations only within India.

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment Iiability, total cost

incurred to acquire segment assets and total amount of charge for depreciation during the period, is as reflected in the
financial information as ofand for the year ended 3l March 2023.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to rnake judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent Iiabilities. Uncertainty about these judgments, assumptions and estimates could lesull in outcomes that require a

rnaterial adjustment to the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities allccted in future periods.

ln lhe process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management makes judgement, estimates and assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

(u) Restatement
The Cornpany rcstates its financial statements and presents a opening balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding

period if it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial
statemenls or reclassifies items in its financial statemenls that has a material effect on the information in the balance sheet at

the beginning ofthe preceding period.

The Company corrects material prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for issue

after their discovery by (a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in rvhich the error occuned; or
(b) if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and

equity for the earliest prior period presented.
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Tlre key judgernents, estimates and assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within lhe next tinancial year, are described belorv. 'l'he Company based its judgements, assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to markel changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

A) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts rvith customers:

a. (i) Idenlifrcation of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by the
Company as a single perfonnance obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent. In assessing whether
perlonnance obligations relating to sale of undivided share of land and constructed area are highly interrelated/
interdependent, the Company considers factors such as:

- whether lhe customer could benefit liom the undivided share of land or the construcled area on its own or together with
other resources readily available to the customer.

- whether the entity will be able to fulfil its promise urrder the contract, to transfer the undivided share of land without
transfer of constructed area or transfer the constructed area without transfer of undivided share or'land.

a. (ii) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation

Revenue from sale of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transferred to the cuslomer. The

entity assesses liming of transfer of control of such units to tlle customers as transferred over time if one of the follorving
criteria are met:

-'l'he customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's performance as the entity
perfornrs.
- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the cuslomer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

- The entity's performance does no1 create an asset with an altemative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control is not transferred over time as above, the entity considers the same as transferred at a point in tirne.

For contracts where control is transferred at a point in time the Company considers the following indicators of the transfer

ofcontrol ofthe asset to the customer:

- When the entity obtains a present right to payment for the asset.

- When the entity transfers legal title ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfers physical possession ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfers significant risks and rewards ofownership olthe asset to the customer.
- When the customer has accepted the asset.

The aloresaid indicators of tlansfer of contlol are also considered for detemlination of the timing of derecognition of
investrnent property.

b) Accounting for revenue and land cost for projects executed through joint development arrangements ('JDA')
For projects executed tlrrough joint developruent arrangenrents, thc Conrpany has evaluated that land owners are not

engaged in the same line of business as the Compaly and hence has concluded that such arrangements are contracts wilh
customers. The revenue from the development and transfer of constructed area/revenue sharing arrangement and the

corresponding land/ development rights received under JDA is nreasured at the fair value of the estimated construction
service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch of the project. The fair value is estimated with
reference to lhe terms ofthe JDA (whether revenue share or area share) and the related cost that is allocated to discharge thc
obligation ofthe Company under the JDA. Fair value ofthe constnrction is considered to be the representative fair value of
the revenue transaction and land so obtained. Such assessment is canied out at the launch ofthe real estate project and is
not reassessed at each reporting period. The lnanagement is ol the vierv thot the fair value method and estimates are

reflective ofthe current rnarket corrdition.
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c) Significant financing component
For contracts involving sale of real estate unil, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the

contract in proportion of the percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments made by

custorners to secure performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such

consideration is received and utilised for specific real eslate projects in accordance with the requirements ofthe Real Estate

(Regulation and Development) Act, 2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such conlracts with customers do
not involve any financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of
finance to/flom the customer.

B. Classification of property

The Cornpany determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory as below.

Investnrent propert)'comprises land and buildings (principally office and residential properties) that are not occupied
substantially lbr use by, or in the operations oe the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. 'l'hese building/gs are substantially rented to tenants and not
intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business.

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential and

commercial propeny that the Company develops and intends to sell before or during the course of construction or upon

completion of construction.

Estimation ofnet realizable value for inventory and land advance

Inventory is stated at the lorvel ofcost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV fbr completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting dale

and is determined by the Company, based on conrparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same

geograpliical n:arket serving the same real cstate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory prope(y under construction is assessed with reference to nrarket prices at the reporting dale for
similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete constnrction and an estimate of the time value of money to the

date of completion.

With respect to land inventory and land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value offuture cash

flows, rvhich depends on the estimate of. among other things, the likelihood that a project will be completed, the expected

date ofcompletion, the discount rate used and the estimation ofsale prices and construction costs.

C. Inlpairment of non-Iinancial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its rccoverable amount, which is the

higher olits fair value less costs ofdisposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs ofdisposal calculalion is based on

available dala from binding sales transactions, conducted at amr's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in usc calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are

delived fiom the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet

comnritted to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being lested. The

recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF nrodel as well as the expected future cash-inflows and

the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to disclosure of fair value of investrnent
property recorded by the Compxny.

D. Delined benefit plans - Gratuity
Tlre cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employnrent medical benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuatiou involves making various assumptions

that may differ from actual developnlents in the future. These include thc determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Duc to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-tern) nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are revierved at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate ftrr plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of governmenl bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly al'ailable
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflalion rates and expected salary increase thereon.



Casa Grande Crace Private Limited
Notes to linancial stalements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amow s are in Million )ndian rupees, unless olheruise stated)

E. Mensurement of financial instruments at amortized cost
Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effeclive interest ('EIR') method. The
computation ofamortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate ofinterest, contractual cash flows and

the expected life ofthe financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of
financial instruments.

F. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment is determined based on evaluation made by the

management of the expected usage of the assel, the physical wear and teal and technical or commercial obsolescence ofthe
asset. Due to the judgements involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive 10 the actual usage in
future peliod.

G. Provision for Iitigations and contingencies
Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present

obligation arising from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits, which involves judgements around eslimates lhe ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement

of the obligation amount. Due to judgements involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in
future periods.

2.5 Recent accounting pronounccmcnts

Nelv and amended standards
The lvlinistry ofCorporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 3l 2023, MCA, amended the Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS l, Presentation of.Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting
policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption ofthis amendment is annual periods

beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Enors - This amendrnent has introduced a definition
ol'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies

from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after 0l April 2023.

Ind AS 12, Incorne Taxes - Tlris amendment has nanorved the scope ofthe initial recognition exemption so that it does not

apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary diffcrences. The effective date for adoption of this

amendment is annual pcriods beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

The amendments are extensive and the Company rvill evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Tlrese amendments had no impact on the financial statements ofthe Company.
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(AtI amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings Computers
Furniture

and
Fixtures

Office
Equipment

Plant and
Machinery

Total

Cost

As at 0l April 2021

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2023

0.02 0.27

1.00

r.09 0.10

5.84 4.28

0.02 0.04

0.23

0.09

1.00

0.10 0.18 0.43

| ,23

0.18 r.66

0.07 11.19

0.02 1.27 0.25

0.03

12.856.93 4.38

0.09 0.t4 0.04 0.30

Depreciation

As at 01 April 2021

Depreciation charge for the

year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Depreciation charge for the
year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2023

0.09 0.14 0.04 0.03 0.30

0.31 0.73 0.03 2.01

0.40 0.87 0.98 0.06 2.31

Net block

As at 0l April 2021

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.04

0.r8
0.87

0.10

0.06

3.40

0.18

0.15

0.19

0.43

1.36

10.54

0.09

0.95

6.06

Note - On transition to Ind AS (i.e. I April 2021), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment.

0.94
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(All amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4. Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated, measured at amortised cost)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Loans to related party
Loan to related parties

Total loans carried at amortised cost

Current

Non-Current

5. Other financial assets

(Measured at amortised cost)

9.3 0 1,143.16 |,129.44

930 tJ43J6 t,r29A4
9.30 1,143.16 1,129.44

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Security deposit

Bank deposits with more than I2 months

Interest accrued but not due

Interest accrued and due

Rental advance

Total financial instruments at amortised cost

Current

Non-Current

6. Other assets

149.78

0. l6
402.11 291.19 149.94

386.s2

15.59

291 .19 149.94

0.61

14.98

38s.70

0.06

0.76

290.7 5

0.06

0.38

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Advance to suppliers

Advances for land contracts

Tax paid under protest

Prepaid expenses

Balance with Govemment authorities

Total other assets

Current

Non Currenl

7. Deferred tax assets (net/ Deferred tax liabilities (net)

57.09 17.34

68.71 86.62 30.76

67.65

1.06

86.62 30.76

20.62 12.10

17.43

1.22
2.20

1.06

2.t6
44.87

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Deferred tax liabilities
Inventory
Borrowings
Gross deferred tax liabilities

97.48

l.0l
235.29

l. l8
654.24

2.01

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment

Uneamed revenue

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax asseU(liabilities)

98.49 236.47

0.13

293.03

0.21

656.25

0.14

697.80

0.02

0.39

87.1 r

10.74

98.24 293.37 697.96

(0.2s) 56.90 41.71



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

8. Inventories As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Work-in-progress
Raw materials, componenls and stores

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable Yalue

9. Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)

2,332.53

46.02

2,109.75

10.36

3,851 .84

t7 .60

2,378.55 2.120.11 3,869.44

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0t April 2021

Trade receivables

Trade receivables ageing schedule As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

123.36 6s.20 80.71

123.36

As at
01 April 2021

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment

Current but not due

Less than 6 months

6months-lyear
I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

10. Cash and cash equivalents

t03.77
10.51

5.95

3.13

37.38

16.62

t0.32
0.86

0.02

45.94

26.56

4.80

3.41

123.36 65.20 80.71

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l Aoril2021

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts

Cash on hand

| 46.34

0.17

42.05

0.33

54.92

0.56

Total cash and cash equivalent 146.51 42.38 55.48

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods

of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements ofthe Company, and eam interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates.

I l. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

In ear marked accounts:
- Balance held as margin money against guarantees given

Total other bank balance
10.7 I 15.00

10.71 15.00

The Company has pledged a part of its short{erm deposits to fulfil collateral requirements.

12. Current tax ass€t (net) As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Advance tar
Provision for tax

Total current tax (net)

106.68

101.63)
85.66

(170.9e)
7t.06

(80.18)

)5.05 (8s.33 (e.12)

65.20 80.71
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(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise sloted)

13. Equity share capital Equity shares of { l0 each
umber Amount

a) Authorised share capital
As at 0l April 2021

Increase(decrease) during the year

As at 3l March 2022

lncrease/(decrease) during the year

As at 3l March 2023

b) Issued share capital
At 0l April 2021

lncrease(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2022

I ncrease/(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2023

c) Paid-up share capital
At 0l April202l

10,000 0. l0

10,000 0.10

10,000 0.10

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to

The Company has one class of equity shares viz., regular equity shares.

Regular Equity shares : These equity shares are having a par value of { l0 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for One vote per

share held. The dividend proposed by the board is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General

Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. ln the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the

remaining assets ofthe Company afier distribution ofall preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

10,000 0.10

10,000 0.t 0

r0,000 0.10

0.10

Increase(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2022 10,000 0.10

Increase(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2023 10,000 0.t0

Details of shareholders holding more than 57o shares and shar€s held by promotors in th€ Company

r 0,000

No. of res 7o of Holdine

As at
3l March 2022

No. ofShares 7o of Holdins

As at
3l March 2023

Equity shares

Casagnnd Premier Builder Private Limited
(Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private

Limited)
10,000 100% 100%10,000

As at
01 April 2021

No. of Shares 7o of Holdins
Equity shares

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited
(Formerly known as Casagrand Casagrand Builder
Private Limited)

Details of changes in the promotors holdings

10,000 100%

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 202I

Equity shares
Casagrand Premier Builler Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Casagrand Builder Private Limited) 0% 0% 0%
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(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

14. Other equity As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

a) Retained earnings

Opening
Add: Additions

Closing

15. Borrowings

229.58

t67.53

39.62

189.96

32.03

7 .59

397.1I 229.58 39.62

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l Aoril 2021

A) Non-current borrowings

Secured
i) Debentures

l2% Unlisted, fully secured, redeemable, cumulative, non-

convertible Series A debentures ofpar value of { 1,00,000 each

(31 March 2023 - 5000, 3l March 2022 - 5000, 3l March 2021 - 5000)

Unlisted, fully secured, redeemable, cumulative, non-convertible

Series A debentures of par value of { 1,00,000 each

(31 March 2023 - 380, 3l March 2022 -380,31 March 2021 -Nil)

ii) Term Loans

a) From banks

b) From other parties

From financial institutions

Total non current borrowings

B) Current borrowings

Secured

i) Current maturity of long-term loans
From financial institutions

Debentures:

l2% Unlisted, fully secured, redeemable, cumulative, non-
converlible Series A debentures ofpar value of { 1,00,000 each

(31 March 2023 - 5000, 31 March 2022 - 5000, 3l March 2021 - 5000)

Unlisted, fully secured, redeemable, cumulative, non-convertible
Series A debentures of par value of { 1,00,000 each

(31 March 2023 - 380, 3l March 2022 - 380,31March 202l -Nil)

Unsecured
i) Loan repayable on demand
From related parties

140.85

44.46 497 .',70 505.04

l 2 5.00

122.t4

t 42.55 54.68 87.5 8

474.15 677.38 592.62

334.79

393.83

103.73

374.19 499.79

258.86

144.s2 641 .06

832.35 778.17 I

Total current Borrowings

165.00



Cass Grrllde Crrce Privrte Limited
Notes to Finincial Statements for th€ year endcd 3l Mrrch 202J

(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise slaled)

S.no lender

Disburs€
meot

Amt in
Mn

Prrticulars
2023 2022 2021

Aml in
Mn

Amt in
Mo

Aml in
1!ln

I
State Bank

oflndia
400.00

Bonowing Entity: Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Naturc of Security :

l. Prop€rty: Mortgage ofthe project land situated at S.Nos.240/12 measuring acres and 45 cents

6nd S.Nos. 240115 measuring 4 acres and 76 cents totally measurang up to 13 acles 2l cents at

kalavakkam village, Thiruporur Taluk, Chengalpattu District and presenl and future built up area

in project "Soulhbrooke'
2. Stock, Receivables & Movable properties:
(i) hlpothecation ofthe moveable assets / stocks / work in progress ofthe project - Southbrooke
(ii) Charg€ on lhe cashflows / receivables from the proj€ct by the way if h,lothecation
3. Corporate Cuarantee: Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited
4. Personal Guarante€: Mr. Arun MN

193.81

Repayment Terms & Rate oflnterest I

l. Facility Type: Project specific one lime Cash credit
Tolal Facility arnounti t 800.00 Million
2. Final Malurity: D€c-25
3. Repayment: Repayable in 8 instalmenls from Feb-24
4. Inleresl Rate: 9.400/0 p.a. (MCLR-6M(8.40%) plus 1% margin)



Cese Grrllde Grtc. Privrte Limitcd
Notes to Financiel Strtemenas for the yetr etrded 3l Mrrch 2023

(AU amounts are ih Millions, unless otheNke stoted)

S,oo lender

Disburse
meot

Amt in
Mn

Perticulars

2023 2021

Amt in
I\tn

Amt in
Mn

India Realty

Excellence

Fund III

500.00

Borowing Entityr Casa Grande Gtac€ Private Limited
Nature of Security I

l. Prop€rty: First ranking exclusiv€ charge by way of memorandum ofdeposit of title deeds (and

registration therelf) in respect oflhe Mortgaged property - Project Land admeasuring Acr€s 14.75

in Survey no. 139, 140, l4t Situat€d at Thalambur Village, Thiruporur Taluk, Karcheputam

district and entirc saleabl€ area of 16,37,000 square feet.

2. Stock and receivables & Movable Properties: (i) First ranking exclusive charge by way of
h,?othecation ov€I lhe H,?oth€cated Property - a.ll present and future movable properties ofthe
Company in rclation to the Project (Thalarnbur) including without limitation: (a) all entitl€m€nt

and rights ofthe Company on the Receivables, moveable asscts 6nd futurc cash flows in respect of
the Project; and (b) lh€ Escrow Accounls, Casa Grande Grace Private Limited _ Construclion

Account, all other bank accounts of the Company and all monies and investmenls lying to the

credit ofthe Escrow Accounts, Construction Account

3. Corporate guarante€: Casagrand Premier Builder Privat€ Limit€d

49919 499.79

Repaynent Tems & Rate oflnt€rcst :

L F.cility Tlpe: 5000 Unlisted, fully secured, redeemable, cumulative, non-convertibl€ Series A
debentures of pa! value of< 0.10 Million each

Facility Amount: { 500.00 Million
2. Final Maturity: August 20, 2024

3. Red€mption: NCDS ate rcdermable in 4 instalments as follows:
(i) 33% ofthe Principal on March 31,2024;
(ii) 33% of the Principal on June 30, 2024;
(iii) 34% ofthe Principal on August 20,2024
Prepayment - D€benture repayment amount is repayable at any time from the internal accruals

arising from the cashflows of the project, which shall be a minimum of a 20.00 Million unless

otherwise agre€d by the debenture rustee.
4. Interim interest coupon: (i) Quarterly compounded at lie rate of 12% p.a (fixed) payable

quarterly until March 31,2023. Filst coupon compounded on September 30, 2019.
(ii) Qu.nerly c.rnpounded al the rate of 16% p.a (fix€d) payable quarterly from April 0l, 2023

5. lnter€st Moratorium: up to June 30,2020. The momtorium interest repaid in 2 equal instalments

with first instalment payable on June 30,2020 and Second Installment payable on Septemb€r 30,

2020
6. Additional Interest: The Addilional Inte,est at IRR on subscription amount shall b€ payable

simultaneously with any payment of Principal made to the Debenture Holders in the same

proportion as the Principal repaid. as follows:
(a) In lhe event the Seies A NCDS are being redeemed in full, on or before September 30, 2023, an

amount that provides the Debenture Holders an IRR of: (i) 21.75% till March 31,2023; and (ii)
IRR of l8o/o on and fiom April 01, 2021 up to Sept€mber 30, 2023 or full redemption of Series A
NCDS, whichever is earlier;

(b) In the event th€ Series A NCDS are being redeemed in full, on or after October 01, 2023 to
D€ccrnb€r 31,2023, an amount that provides the Debenture Holders an IRR of: (i) 21.75% till
March 31, 2023; and (ii) IRR of 19% on and fiom April 0l, 2023 up to D€cembcr 31, 2023 or tull
redemption ofSeries A NCDS, vhichever is e.rlier;
(c) In the event the Series A NCDS are being red€emed in full, on or after JanuTy 01,2024 to
March 31, 2024, an amount that provides the Debenture Holders an IRR of (i) 21.75% till March
31,2023: a]nd (ii) IRR of 19.5% on and from April 01, 2023 up to March 31,2024 or fdl
redemption of Series A NCDs, whichever is earlier;
(d) ln the event the Series A NCD! are bcing redeemed in tull, on or afier April 01, 2024, an
amount that provides rhe Deb€nture Holders an IRR of: (i) 21.75% lill March 3 l, 2023;
6nd (ii) IRR of 20% on and from April 01, 2023 up to rhe date of tull redemprion of Series A
NCDs.

Amt in
Mn

2 499.79



Crsr Grende Grace Privete Limited
Notes to Fitrancirl Sletements for the yerr Gnded 3l Merch 2023

(All amoanls arc in Millions, unless olhemise slaled)

S.oo lender

Disburse
ment

Amt in
Mn

Particulrrs
2023 2022 2021

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
l\rn

India Realty

Excellence

Fund v
380.00

Borowing Entity: Casa Grdnde Grac€ Private Limited
Nature of Security :

l. Property: First ranking exclusive charge by way of memorandum of deposit oftitle deeds (and

registration thereoO in respect of the Mortgaged prop€rty - Project "Casagrand Crandio" and

Project [.and 8dmeasuring Acres 7 and 22.5 Cenls in Surv€y no. 90/15A, 901158,9018,91/8,9017,

90/19. 89/7. 90/10. 90/16, 9tt4,90/r, 110/lA,9llls, 891t, 8912, 9019, 90/13, 90/17, 90/18,

8913. 9117, 9lll0, 9llll, 10916, 10917, 90112,91/12 Situated at Vandalur Taluk, Chengalpattu

disldct and €ntire saleable areaof2,20,759 square feet.

2. Stock and rcceivables & Movable Prop€nies: (i) First tanking exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation over the Hypoth€cated koperty - all present 6nd firture movable properties of the

Company in rclation to the Project (Grandio) including without limitation: (a) all entitlement and

rights ofthe Company on the Receivables, moveable ass€ls and future cash flows in respect ofthe
Project; and (b) the Escrow Accounts, Consfuction Account, all other bank accounls of the

Company and all monies and invest nents lying to the credit ofthe Escrow Accounts, Construction

Account
(ii) Second ranking charge by way of hlTothecation on cashflows in respect of lhe untitl€d real

estate project to be developed by

Casagrand Horizons Private Limited at Pallikaranai village, Tamil Nadu
(iii) Second raoking charge by way of hypothecation on cashflo\rys in respect of the untitled real

estate project to be developed by

Casa Crand€ Crace Private Limited at Thalambur, Tamil Nadu
(iv) Second ranking charge by way of h)'pothecation on cashflows in respect of the real estate

project titled 'Boul€vard' being developed by Gazy Mag Private Limited at Chikkagubbi. Kamataka
(v) Second mnking charge by way of h,'pothecation on cashflows in respect of the real estate

project tilled 'Millenia being developed by Casagrand Millenia Private Limited at Thiruvallur,
Tarnil Nadu
(vi) second nnking charg€ by way of hrlothecation on cashflows in respect of the untitled real

est te prcject to be developed by Casa Grande Card€n City Builders Privat€ Limited at Kengeri

village, Kengeri Hobli, Bang.lore East Taluk
3. Corporate gualantee: Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited

Repayment Terms & Rat€ oflnterest I

l. Facility TWe: 380 Unlisted, redeemable, cumulativ€, non-convenible Series B debentures
('Series I NCDS") at par i.e., { 1.00 Million each

Total Facility arnount: < 380.00 Million

2. Fina.l Maturity: 0n or prior to March 3 I , 2024

3. Repa),rnent: NCDS are redeemable in 4 instalments as follows:
(i) 257o (Tw€nty Five P€,c€nt) ofth€ Principal on June 30,2023:
(ii) 25% (Twenty Five Percent) ofthe Principal on September 30, 2023;
(iii) 25y"(Twenty Five Percent) ofth€ Principal on Declmber 31, 2023; and
(iv) 25oldTwenty Five Percent) oflhe Principal on M6rch 31,2024
Prepalment: Repayable at any time from the afiounts from the intemal accruals arising from the
cash flows ofthe project (Manapakkam), such repayment shall be a minimum of< 20.00 Million
unless olherwise agrerd by lhe debenlure iruslee in $Titing.
4. Int€rim int€rest coupon: quartedy compounded at the rate of 15.5% p.a (fixed) and payable
quafierly. First coupon compounded on December 3 I , 202 1

5. Interest Moratorium: No momtorium for interest
6. Additional Int€rest: Entire additional interest that provides the Debenture Holders an IRR of
lloh is rcpayable on Malch 31,2U4.

122.l5 258.86



Css[ Grande Grrc€ Priv|te Limited
Notes to Finenciel Strtem€nts for the year ended 3l Msrch 2023

(All amounls arc in Mil6ons, unless olhen he sloted)

S.no lender

Disburse
ment

Amt io
N{tr

Psrticulirs
2023 2022 2021

Amt in
Nlo

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

4

LIC
Housing
Finance

Limited

190.00

Borovdng Enlityr Casa Grande GIac-t Private Limited
Naturc ofSecurity :

L Prop€rty: Extension of s€curity on second charge basis on Mongage of the project land
(Casagrand Supremus) admeasuring 12.65 Acres situated in SIPCOT- Thalambur Road comprised
in Survey Nos.63,2, 4A,4B,4C,54, 58, 64, 6C, 6D, 7,{, 8A, 88, 87/14"18.2,3,90/1,2 ,3,4,5,6,74,
9412,3,t3, t4, 15,95/2,3,6, 7, 8, 9, 10,11,A, llB, 12, 13, 14 As l4B, r4C, t5, 16, l7 ofof
Thazhambur Village, Thirupporur panchayat Union, Chengalput Taluk, Kanchipuram District
including construct thereon and excluding OSR, Gifted Portion and land and Saleabl€ area of
9,30,61I Sq Ft.

2. Stock and recaivables & Movable Prop€(ies: a) Extension ofth€ s€curity on s€cond charge basis

on assignment or H,?othecation of r€c€ivables ftom the proj€ct "Supremus" comprising of
development of728 units with sal€able area of9,30,61 I sq. ft. b) First and exclusive charge by way
of h,?olhecation on all assels or propenies acquired or financed by the lo6n
3. Guarantee: I00% Guarante-e fiom NCGTC (National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company)

148. r 8 t89 99

Repayment Terms & Rate of Interest :

l. Facility Tlpe: Term lo6n (Efieryency Crcdit Line Guaranter Scheme)

2. Sanction amount: I 190.00 Million
3. Date ofsanction: March 26, 2021. Date offirst disbursement: March 29, 2021

4. Tenor: TeIm of 60 months

5. Principal Moratorium: 12 months ftom the fiNt disbursemenl (till March 2022)
6. Repayment: Repayable monthly after completion of momtorium from the date of firsl
disbursement excluding broken period in 48 equated monthly instalments (EMl) of < 5.14 Million
7. lnterest: 13.5% p.a (ROI not to cross l4olo during lhe lenure oflhe loan), payable monthly for 12

months from the dale of lsl disbuFement after broken p€iod interest.

186.99



Crs{ Grandr Grrcc Privrte Limited
Notes to Financial Statemenls for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amountt are in Millions, uhless otherwise stoled)

S.no lcnder

Disburse
ment

Amt in
Mn

Particulars

2023 2022 2021

Amt in
Mn

Ant in
lUn

Amt in
NIn

5

LIC
Housing
Financr
Limited

1,250.00

Bonoring Entity: Casa Grande Gract Private Limited
Nature ofsecurity:
L Property: Equitable Mortgage of the Project "Casagrand SUPREMUS" and project land

admeasuing 12.65 Acres situated in SIrcOT- Thalambur Road comprised in Survey Nos.63/2,

4A48,4C,5A" 58, 6A, 6C, 6D, ?A" 8A, 88' 81/1A"18'2,3,9011,2 ,3,4, 5,6,74, 9412,3,13, 14, 15,

9512.3.6,7.8.9, l0,ll,A, llB, 12, 13, l4 4 l4B, l4C, 15, t6, 17 of of Thazhambur Village,

Thirupporur panchayal Union, Ch€ngalput Taluk, Kanchipuram District including construct

lhereon and excluding OSR, Gifted Portion and land and Saleable area of 9,30,61I sq. ft.

2. Stock and rcceivables & Movable Prop€rties: a) Assignment / Hlpothecation ofreceivables from
the proj€ct "Casagand SUPREMUS". b) Cha€e over Project Rec€ivables arising ftom the Project

Supremus and to be deposited in the maste, RERA accounl opened by the Company with the

Escrow Agent.

3. Corporate Guanntee: Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited

4. Personal Guarante€: Mr. Arun MN

455.l0 956.02

Repayment Terms & Rate of Interest :

I . Facility Tlpe: Term loan

Facility Amount: < 1250.00 Million
2. Tenor: 48 months

3. Repayment: Repa)€ble in 24 instalments after the completion ofmomtorium of24 months(April
2021) &s follows:
(i) Fi.st to sixth instalment - a 60.00 Million
(ii) Seventh to Twelfth instalment - < 70.00 Million
(iii) Thirleenlh to Fifteenth instalment - a 60.00 Million
(iv) Sixteenth & Seventeenth instalment - < 50.00 Million
(v) Eighteenth to Twenty lirsl instalment - a 10.00 Million
(vi) Twenty Second to Twenty fourth instalment - < 70.00 Million
(o0
100"/o of monthly / weekly / daily sale proc€lds to be adjusted towards repayment of Principal /
LICHFL dues without prcpayrnent charges from all future receivables from the projecl. (Tied or
Untied). (Whichever is higher or earli€, than the abov€)

Pr€pa!,rn€nt - Prepayment charyes @ 2%, exept when adjusted / rcpaid out of individual loans

from the same pmject and / or fiom ssle procleds of flals in the project kno*n as "Casagrand
ST]PREMUS'
4. Rale ofinteresr 12.50% p.a (Floating) payable monlhly.

5. Principal Momtorium: 24 months fiom the date offirst disbursement

Loan closed on olst March 2023



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

16. Other financial liabilities
(Carried at amortised cost) As at

3l March 2023
As at

3l March 2022
As at

01 April 2021
Interest accrued but not due

Accrued expenses

Redemption Premium on Debenture

Others

Total other financial liabilities
Current

Non currenl

17. Other liabilities

24.04

5 5.85

221 .38

0.01

14.65

0.65

76.1I

9.91

1.04

132.6t

301.28 143.56 91.41

30 r .28

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
01 April 2021

10.95

132.61

15.30

16.t 1

Advance from customers

Statutory dues and related liabilities
Unearned Revenue

Corpus Fund

Others

Total other liabilities
Current
Non current

18. Trade payables

60.32

3.20

859.10

18.20

0.04

48.58

9.87

t,366.6t
15.62

0.09

234.17

3.76

3,127.18

L90
0.21

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
01 April 2021

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues ofmicro small and medium enterprises

- total outstanding dues to others

Total trade payables

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Total trade payables

71.44

137.30

14.31

452.72

19.41

97.56

208.7 4 467.03 116.97

206.32

2.42

131 .29

329.74

1 13.66

3.31

2{18.74 467.03 116.97

940.86 tA40J7 $67n
589.06 t,440.77 3,367.22

351.80



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(Ail amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Trade payables ageing schedule

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises

Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding dues to others
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

I14.43
14.53

6.78

1.56

396.81

53.93

1.98

64.12

29.83

3.61

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

66.65

4.01

0.57

0.21

17.10

2.08

0.23

71.44 14.31 19.41

137.30 152.72 97.56

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Suppliers as defined under "The Micro Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act 2006" is based on information available with the management. As certified by the management, on

the amounts overdue (ifany) to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises on account of principal amount, interest has been accrued

and will be paid to suppliers on demand of claim. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at

the balance sheet date.

19. Revenue from contracts with customers
rch

Revenue from real estate development

Total revenue from contracts with customers
India

outside India

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Other operating revenues

Modification income

Marketing commission

Cancelled customer income

Scrap sales

Total other operating revenues

Total revenue from operations

Contract balances

1,634.08 3,126.86

1,634.08 3,126.86

r,634.08 3,t26.86

1,634.08 J,126.86

l,634.08 3,126.86

1,634.08 3,126.86

4.52

l.0l
0.86

2l .85

0.46

6.39 22.3t

1.610.41 3,149.17

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 rch 2022

Contract assets

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue

Contract liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

Customer advances

123.36

859. l0
60.32

65.20

1,366.61

48.58

9.39

3.50

1.42



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts qre in Millions, unless otherwise st(lted)

20. Other income
31 March 2023 I March 2022

Dividend income on mutual funds

lnterest income

Rent income

Miscellaneous income

21. Cost of raw materials, components and stores consumed

2.45

0.05

0.13
4.14 2.63

0.01

3.99

0.06

0.08

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

a. Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end ofthe year

22. Construction activity expenses

10.36

296.53
(46.02)

t7 .60

186.65

( 10.36)

3l arch 2023 3l March 2022

Land cost

Approval, legal and Iiaison

Construction cost

lnterest and financial charges

278.28

t04.74
779.83

206.76

239.80

r9.59

563.59

I t7 .26

1.369.61 9{0.2{

23. (Increase)/ decrease in stock offlats, land stock and work-in-progress and traded goods
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

a) Opening balance

Work-in-progress

Total opening balance

24. Finance costs

2,109.7s

2,109.75

2,332.53

2,332.53

3,851.84

3,8s1.84

2,109.75

2,109.75

(222.78) 1,742.09

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest on borrowings
Other borrowings costs

Less: Borrowing Cost transferred to Construction activity expenses

25. Depreciation and amortization expense

206.81

1.90

I t7 .29

5.58

208.71
(206.76

t22.87
(fi7.26))

5 5.619I

3l March 2022
2.01 0.30Depreciation ofproperty, plant and equipment

31 March 2

2.01 0.30

260.87 193.89

b) Closing balance

Work-in-progress

Total closing balance

c) Total difference in inventory (a) - (b)



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

26. Other expenses
3l March 2023 31 arch 2O22

Power and fuel

Rates and taxes

Re p atrs and mainlenanc e

Buildings
Vehicles

Others

Advertising and sales promotion

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Commission and brokerage fees

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (Refer details below)

Software expenses

Rent

Bank charges

Discount
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to Auditors

0.04

0.10

0.04

0.16

0.07

0.01

4.04

0.52

0.88

0.12

0.26

0.01

0.50

0.45

0.13

0.20

0.34

0.02

0.06

0.10

0.05

l .40

0.t2
0.23

0.3 5

0.03

0.l8

1.44

7.75 4.10

3l March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor:

Audit fee

Olher services (cerlifi cation fees)

27. Tax expense

0.28

0.17

0.34

0.01

0.4s 0.35

3l March 2023 31 March 2022

(0.26)
(10.s3)

( 137.81)

205.9t

0.53

(0.17

90.81

0.01

(0.1e)

(418.e5)

404.77

(0.84)

57.67 75.61

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax ofprevious year

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal oftemporary differences

i) Properfy, plant and equipment

ii) Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

iii) Inventory
iv) Uneamed revenue

v) Bonowings

Income tax expense reported in the statement of prolit or loss



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(At,I amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise slated)

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax on dccounting profit at statutory income tax

rate 25.l1yo

Tax effect on account oftransition to IND AS
Deferred tax effect

225.20

56.68

(56.15)

57.t4

265.57

66.84

23.97

( 1s.20)

Adjustments recognised in the current year in
relation to the cunent tax ofprior years

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 57.67 7 5.61

+The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section I I5BAA ofthe lncome Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the

Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance,2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for Income Tax for the year

and re-measured its Deferred tax asset (or/and defened tax liability) basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

28. Earnings per share
31 March 2023 3l March 2022

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic

eamings ( A )

Equity Shares

Number of shares at the beginning ofthe year

Add :- shares issued during the year

Total Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year ( B )

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : Weighted average number ofshares that have dilutive effecl on EPS

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year - Diluted ( C )

Earning per share of par value INRI0 - Basic ( D = A / B ) (In {)
Earning per share of par value INRIO - Diluted (E=A/C)(Int)

167.53 189.96

10,000 10,000

t0,000

r 0,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

16,753

16,753

10,000

18,996

18,996

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 3l March 2023 and 3l
Nlarch 2022

3l March 2023 3l March 2022



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

29. Fair value measurements

The details of fair value measurement ofCompany's financial assets/liabilities are as below:

Financial assets/Iiabilities measured at FairValue through profitfloss:
As at As at

Level 31 March 2023 3l March 2022
As at

0l April 2021

Investments in quoted investments -

mutual funds

current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There have been no transfers between

levels during the period.

The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short term investments,

loans, trade payables, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short-

term maturities.

Set out below, is a comparison by class ofthe carrying amounts and fair value ofthe Company's financial instruments:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Carrvin g Value Fair value Carrying Value Fair value

Finenciel Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Non-Cunent)

Bonowings (Current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

146.51

10.71

9.30

402.11

832.35

47 4.15

208.74

301.28

146.51

10.71

9.30

402.11

832.35

474.15

208.74

301.28

42.38

15.00

I,143.16

291.19

42.38

15.00

1,143.16

291.19

778.17 778.17

677.38 677 .38

467.03 467.03

t0.95 t0.95
As at

01 April 2021

Carrying Value Fair value
Financial Assets

Investments (non-cunent)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Non-Current)

Borrowings (Current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

|,129.44

149.94

55.48

I,140.85

592.62

116.97

15.30

55.48

1,129.44

149.94

1,140.85

s92.62

]16.97

15.30



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to tr'inancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

30. Capital Management

The Company's objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. [n order to maintain or adjust the

capital structure, the Company may adjust the retum to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The

Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements

of the fi nancial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.

.Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders

.Net debt includes borrowings (non-current and current), trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash

equivalents (including bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with banks)

As at As at As at
31 March 2023 3l Nlarch 2022 01 April 2021

Bonowings (non-current and current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities (cunent and non-current)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents(including balances at bank other than

cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with banks)

Net Debt (A)
Equity share capital

Other equity

Equity (B)

Equity plus net debt (C= A+B)
Gearing ratio (D = A./C)

1,306.s0

208.74

301.28

1,733.47

116.97

91.41

(1s7.22) (57.38) (ss.48)

1,659.30

0.10

397.11

2,008.76

0. l0
229.58

1,886.37

0.10

39.62

397.21

2,056.51

80.69%

229.68

2,238.44

89.74%

39.72

1,926.09

97 .94Yo

In order to achieve the objective of maximize shareholders value, the Company's capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the financial covenants would allow the bank to call borrowings. There have

been no breaches in the financial covenants of above-mentioned interest-bearing borrowing.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years.

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents and bank
balances other than cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management
ofthese risks and ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

1,455.55

467.03

143.56



(AtI amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

i, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and

commodity/ real-estate risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31,2023, March 31, 2022 and April l,
2021. The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed to floating

interest rates ofthe debt. The analysis excludes the impact ofmovements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity

and other post retirement obligations/provisions.

The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based

on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023, March 3l,2022 and AprJ 1,2021.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in Interest

rate. The entity's exposure to the risk of changes in Interest rates relates primarily to the entity's operating activities (when

receivables or payables are subject to different interest rates) and the entity's net receivables or payables

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities/ real estate. Its operating activities require the ongoing

development of real estate. The Company's management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding

commodity/ real estate price risk and its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to
vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant. The impact on the Company's profit before ta,x is due to changes in the fair value of non-current and current

borrowings and other current and non current financial liabilities.

Change in rate
Effect of

profit before
tax

+lYo

-t%
+lyo
-t%
+lYo

-lo/o

2.09

(2.0e)

1.23

(t.23)
1.73

(1.73)

31 March 2022

01 April 2021

The Company invests surplus funds in liquid mutual funds. The Company is exposed to market price risk arising fiom
uncertainties about future values of the investment. The Company manages the equity price risk through investing surplus
funds on liquid mutual funds for short term basis.

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the Net Asset Value (NAV) on the profit for the year. The
analysis is based on the assumption that the NAV price would increase 5olo and decrease by 5% with all variable constant.

Change in rate
Increase/

(decrease) in
profit

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

+5Yo

-5%
+5Yo

-5%
+5Yo

-5%

0.00
(0.00)

01 April 2021

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

3l March 2023



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations.

The Company's exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets like security deposits, loans and bank deposits are mostly with employees, govemment bodies and banks

and hence, the Company does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

With respect to trade receivables/ unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic

basis and to take necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivables

based on lifetime expected credit loss ('ECL').

iii. Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from
operations. The Company believes that the cash and cash equivalents is sufficient to meet its cunent requirements.

Accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived.

The break-up ofcash and cash equivalents, deposits and investments is as below.

31 March 2023 3l Ylarch2022 01 April 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Investments

146.51

10.71

42.38

15.00

55.48

The table below summarises the malurity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are

based on contractual undiscounted payments

Maturitv- 31 March 2023 3l March 2022 0l April 2021period

47 4.15

208.74

301.28

832.3s

461.03

10.95

116.97

15.30

6',77.38 592.62

778.11 I ,140.85

132.61 76.lt

Financial liabilities - non current
Borrowings Between I - 3 years

Lease liabilities Between I - l0 years

Other financial liabilities Between I - 3 vears

Financial liabilities - current
Bonowings (cunent)

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statenrents for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

32. First time adoption
As stated in Note I & 2, the Company has prepared its first financials statements in accotdance with Ind AS. For the

purposes oftransition from previous GAAP to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS

l0l - First Time adoption ofIndian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS 101'), with effect from 'l April, 2021 ("transition

date"). For the year ended 3l March 2022, the Company had prepared its financials statements in accordance with
Company's (Accounts) Rules 2014, notified under section 133 of the Act and other reievant provisions of the Act
("previous GAAP" or "lndian GAAP').

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year endcd

3l March 2023 including the comparative information the year ended 3l March 2022,and I April 2021.

ln preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as al I April 2021 and in presenting the comparative information for the years

ended 3l March 2022 and 3l March 2023, the Company has adjusted amounts repofted previously in financial
statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the

Company in its financial statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, aud how the transition from
plevious CAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position and financial peiformance. 'fhere rvere no

significant reconciling items between cash flows prepared under Ind AS other than those arising due to
reclassit'ication ofthe previous year figures to conform to the current year's presentation.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions
In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and

mandatory exceptions.

A. Optional exemptions availed
(i) . Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS l0l permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and

equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the
Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date oftransition after making necessary adjustments for de-

commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible
Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has clected
to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their Previous GI^AP
carrying value.

(ii). Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Ind AS 27 requires investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to be recorded at cost or in accordance
with Ind AS 109 in its separate financial statements. However, lnd AS l0l provides an option to measure that
investment at one ofthe following amounts in case the Company decides to measure such investment at cost:
i. Cost as per Ind AS 27 or
ii. Deemed cost, which is:

a. Fair value at the entity's date oftransition to Ind AS
b. Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date
The Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures using deemed cost
at the Previous GAAP carying amount at the date of transition to Ind AS.

(iii). Share based payments
Ind AS l0l provides an option to not apply Ind AS 102 to liabilities arising fiom share-based payment transactions
that were settled before the date oftransition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to avail this exemption and apply
the requirements of Ind AS 102 to all such grants under the ESOP plan, which are not settled as at the date of
transition to Ind AS.
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(iv), Revenue from contracts with customers

lnd AS l0l provides following practical expedients when applying Ind AS I l5 retrospectively:

(a) for completed contracts, an entity need not restate contracts that begin and end within the same annual reporting

period;
(b) for completed contracts that have variable consideration, an entity may use the transaction price at the date the

contract was completed rather than estimating variable consideration amounts in the comparativc reporting pcriods;

and
(c) for all reporting periods presented before the beginning of the first Ind AS reporting period, an entity need not

disclose the amount ofthe transnction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an explanation ol
when the entily expects to recognise that amount as revenue.

(v). Business combinations
Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or frorn a specific datc

prior to the transition date. The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to busincss contbinations

occurring after its transition date. Use of this exemption means that business combinations occurring prior to the

transition date have not been restated and the IGAAP carrying alnounts of assets and liabilities, that are required to

be recognised under Ind AS, is their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition,

measurement is in accordance with respective Ind AS.

-Fair valuation offinancial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other
comprehensive income,
Jmpairment of'financial assets based on expected credit loss model,
-Determination ofthe discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost, and
Upon the assessment ofthe estimate made under previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no
necessity to revise sttch estimates under Ind AS, other than those which are required due to application ollnd AS.

(ii) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:
As per Ind AS l0l an enlity should apply the recognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instrunrents,
prospectivcly for transaction occurring after the date of transition to Ind AS However an entity may apply the
der'ecognition requirements retrospectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply tnd AS 109 to
financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result of past transaction were obtaine<i at the time of
initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has chosen to avail the exception to apply the derecognition provision ol Ind AS lot prospectj,/ely
from the date oftransition.

B. Mandatory exemptions availed

Ind AS l0l also allows first-time adopters can claim mandatory exceptions to be applied for retrospective application

ofcertain requirements under Ind AS for transition from the previous GAAP:

(i) Estimates
As per Ind AS l0l, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the dote of transition to Ind AS shall be

consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (afler adjlstments to reflect any

difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Horvever, the

estimates should be adjrBted to reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required

under previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date oftransition (for
preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative
information as per Ind AS).
Ind AS estimated as at 0l April 2O2l are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with
previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of
transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:
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(iii) Classification and measurement of financial assets:

Ind AS l0l requires an entity to classify and measure its financial assets into amortised cost, fair value through profit
or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income based on the business model assessment and solely
payment of principal and interest ("SPPI") criterion based on facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assels accounted at amortised cost based on the

facts and circumstances existing at the date oftransition ifretrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification offinancial assets based on facts and circumstances that

exist on the date of transition. Measurenlent of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done

retrospectively.

C. Reconciliation ofequity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS

The follorving reconciliations provides the effect oftransition to Ind AS fiom previous GAAP in accordance with Ind
AS IOI :

1. Total equity as at I April 2021 and3l March 2022
2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended 3l March 2022
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Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS

1). Total equity as at 3l March 2022 md I April 2021

Particulars As at
3l March 2022Notes

As at
01 April 2021

Equity as reported under previous GAAP
Ind AS adjustments
Fair value adjustments:

E{fect of revenue recognition as pei ND AS I 15

Cost adjustment as per IND AS I l5
Det'emcd tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments

Gratuity Impact

Borrowings Impact

IND AS I 16 - Impact

Mutual funds impact

Total adjustments
Total Equity under Ind AS

(D

(i)
(vii)
(viii)
(ii)
(iv)

397.88

( r,164.28)
934.87

56.56

4.65

163.27

(2,772.ss)

2,599.47

4t.54

1 .99

(r68.20) (l23.ss)
39.72

As at
3l March 2022

229.68

2). Total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended 31 N{arch 2022

Particulars
Notes

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP

Ind AS adjustments
IndAS I l5- Revenue recognition
IND AS I l5- Cost adjustment

Remeasurement of cmployee benefit obligation
Borrowings Impact

Defened tax impact on the atbresaid adjustments

CWIP lmpact

IND AS I 16 - Impact

Total adjustments

Net Profit after tax as per Ind AS
Other comprehensive income (net oftax)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

234.61

1,608.27

( 1,664.60)

(i)
(i)

(viii)
(iD

(vii)
(D

(iu)

(3.34)

15.02

(44.6s)

189.96

189.96
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D. Notes to Ind AS lransition

(i). Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from real estate development is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred to the

customer. The performance obligation in relation to real esrate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and

transfer of control of the asset to the customer. Under previous GAAP Revenue is recognised as per the Revised Ciuidance

Note issued by lnstitute of Chartere<i Accountants of lndia on " Accounting for Real estate transactions (Revised 2012)". As

per which revenue is recognised under the percentage of completion method.

(ii). Borrorvings

Under Ind AS 109 requires rransaction costs incurred tou'ards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying

amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of
the borrowing as part ofthe finance cost by applying the effective interest method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction

costs were ch.rged to slatement ofprofit and loss on straight-line basis over the period of loan.

(iii). Property, plrnt and equipment
Under previous GAAP, (i) Land and (ii) Buildings are included as part of Property, plant and equipment. In accordance with
Ind AS these are cla-ssified as investment properties. The management has determined that the investment properties consist

oftwo classes ofassets (i) Land and (ii) Buildings based on the nature, characteristics and risks ofeach property.

(iv). Leases

Under the previous GAAP, lessee classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease

transferred substantially all risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset. Operating lease were expensed in the
statement of profit and loss. Pursuant to application of Ind AS - l16, for operating leases other than those for u,hich the
Company has opted for short-term or low value exemption, the Company has recorded a right-of-use assets. Right-of-use
asset is amortised over the lease term or useful life ofthe leased assets whichever is lower and lease liabilities is subscquently
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is recognized.

The Company has measured the right-of-r.rse asset at the date oftransition at its carrying amount as if lnd AS - I l6 had been

applied since the commencement date of the lease and the lease liabilitv is measured at present value ofthe remaining lease

payments since the date ofcommencement.

(v). Investments
The movement is relating to reclassification of investments in quoted mutual funds from Cash and Cash equivalents to Short
term Investments and the quoted investments (mutual lirnds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets.
Under prcvious GAAP these were valued at lower ofcost and fair value.

(r,i). Loans and other financial assets

The Inovement in other financia! assets is arising mainly on account of reclassification ofsecurity deposit llom notr-culrent to
ROU assets as per TNDAS I16. Under previous GAAP these were accounted at cost.

(vii). Deferred taxes

lndian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuscs on differenccs t'etween
taxable profits and accounting profits for the periotl. lnd-As 12 requires entities to account for dcferred taxes usinii the
balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying arnount of an asset or liabiliry in the
balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind-AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of defened tax or) ne\v
temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to
temporary differences.

(viii). Remeasurement of post employee benefits cxpense

Undel Ind AS, remeRsurements i.e. actrtarial gains and lcsses and the retum on plan asset, excluding amounts inclucleo in the
net inlerest expensc on the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other conrprehensive income instead of profit or
loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeastirements lvere fornling part ofthe profit or loss for thc year.
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33. Related party transactions

i. Names of related ies and nature of relationshi

Holding company

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidicries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiuries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fcllow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiarics

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellou Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellou Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiarics

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsi,liaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiarics
Fellou' Srrbsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellou'Subsirliarics
Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key managemcnt pe$onnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel ofparent
entity

Name of the related Party Nature of Relationship

Casagrand Premicr Builder Private Limited (Formerly known

as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casa Crande Civil Engineering Private Limited

casa lnterior studio Private Limited (Till 31101/2022)

Casa Grande Propcare Private Limired (T 3ll0ll2022)
Casagrand Staylo$i Privatc Limited

Ca-sa Grande llomes Private Limited

Casagrand Horizons PriYate Limited

Gazy Mag Private Limited
Casagrand Magick Rufy Private l-imited

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Cflsa Grande Zest Private Limited
Casa Grande Axiom Private l,imited

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited

CasaGrande Vistaaz Private Limited
Casa Grande Coimbatore LLP

Casa Grande Enterprises LLP
Casa Orande Shelter LLP

Casa Glande Vallam LLP

Gracc Gated Community LLP
Danub flomcs Pdvate Limited
Darvning Developers LLP
Casa G(ande Realtors ll,P
Sky Magna LLP (TillFY 2020-21)

Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited
Casagrand Rcgale Private Limited

Casagrand Dream Home Private Limited/ Casagrand Bizpark

Private Limited (l0.01.2022)

Casagrand Spaceintell Private Limited
Upstay Builder Priyate Limited (from 22110/2021)

Casagrand Zingo Private Limited (from 28/1012021)

Casagrand Exotia Private Limited (from l0lll/2021)
Casagrand Hyderwise Private Linrited (from 3lll2l202l\
Casagrand Everta Private Limited (from 10/1112011)

Caugrand Vivacity Private Limited (from 3llll202l)
Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited (from 0711212021)

Casagrand Fresh Private Limited (from 1410412021)

Casagrand Magnum Private Limited / SHV LPG India Private

Limited (22-02-2022)

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited (from 26110/2021)

Casagrand StageT Private Limited (from 2910412022)

Casagrand Perch Builder Private Limited (frcm 06105/2022)

Casagrand Beacon Private Limited (from 25106/2022)

Casagrand l-orus Private t,imited (from 16/0612022)

Casagrand Blue Horizon Private Limited (from 06/07/2022)
Exotia Builder Private Limired (fiom 0710712022)

Flock Builder Private Limited (from 07 /0712022)

Casagrand Fittedhomes Private Limited (from 1910712022)

Ca$grand Alphine Private Limited (from 22107/2022)
Casagrand lvlillenia Privatc Limited (from 20/03/2023\
Casagrand Astute Private Limited (from 22/0'1/2022)
Gautam Agarwaal
Arun Mn
Dorothy Thomas
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Note : Related party relationships are as identified by thc management.

ii. TransactioDs with the related parties

Nature of RelationshipName of the related Party

Entities in rvhich key management
personnel exercise signilicant infuencc

Blitzkieg Technolory P vata Limited
Propel Holdings LLP
Iris Development LLP
Blue Sea llomes Search LLP
UKR Agency Private Limited (Till FY 2020-21)

Gallante Promoter LLP
Nobilitas tlome Search LI-P

Sea view Homes Search LLP
Solace Gated Conmunity LLP
venerate Honles Search LLP
Zest Homes Scarch LLP
Casagrand Supreme Home LLP
AAK Itealty Sewice LLP
Arun Hope Foundation

Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Casagand Brightkids Privatc Limited

Syona Cosmetics Private Limited
Chengalpattu Warchor6ing Parks Private Limited
Thinksai Softrvare Private Limited (Till FY 2021-22)

Arun Family Trusteeship LLP
Casagrand Arun MN Academy Foundation

Casa Interior Studio Private Limited (From 0l/02/2022)
casa crande Propcarc Private t.imited (Fron 0l/0212022)

Casagiand Starpark Private Limited
Casagrand Luxor Private Limited
Chengalpattu Logistics Parks Private Limited

Particulars
As at

3l Marcl 2023

As at
3l lllarch 2022

a) Interest Income

Casagand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly

knorvn as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Grace Gatcd Community LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited

Casagrand Anchor PriYate Limited

Casagrand Exotia Private Limited

Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited

Casagrand Zingo Private Limited

Casa Gnnde Homes Private Limited

Casacrande Vistaaz Private Limited

97.19

0.05

2.31

138.27

2.09

0.32

0.290.28

0.06

13.8s

0.82

0.09

0.04

0.09



Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Filancial Statements for the year endcd 3l March 2023

(All anounts are in A,lillions, unless othentise stdted)

Particulars

As at

31 March 2022

b) Civil Billing expenses

Casa Crande Civil Engineering Private Limited

c) Itrterest Expc[ses

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Axiom Private Lirnited

Dawning Developilrs LLP

Casa Grande Shclter LLP

Casagrand Millenia Private Limitcd

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Casa Crande Vallam LLP

AAK Realty Serviaes LLP

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Horizons Private Limitcd

Casagrand lltagick Rury Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

Gallante Promoter LLP

Gazy Mag Private Limited

Casa Grande Zest Private Limitcd

d) Reimbursement of exp

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited

Casa Interior Studio Private Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly
knoun as Casagrand Builder Privatc Limited)

e) Advcrtiseflctrtexpetrses

Casa Graldc Enterprises LLP

f) Lorn received

Crace Gated Community LLP

AAK Realty Services LLP

Casa Grand€ Horizons Private l-imited

Casa Grande Magick Rury Private Limited

Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Shelter I-l,P

Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited

Casagrand Exotia Private Limited

Casagrand Zirrgo Private Limited

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited
Casa$and Premier Builder private Limited (Formerly
known as Casagrand Builder Private I-imited)

Casa Grande Smart Valuc Homes private Limited
Casagrand Acsthetic private Limited

0.9 5

0.10

1.44

2.n
1.68

2.86

l.l4
0.35

0.13

46.80

0.70

19.86

0.0t
0.78

10.22

0.01

0.22

0.03

0.05

207 .45

17.t0

17.72

0.65

2.77

1.24

0.04

0.29

9.44

0.01

0.25

311 .47

10.94

7 .15

L30
0.03

0.86

1.45

t.48
0.37

0.41

0.43

0.64

t0.37
0.06

0.04

| ,063.26

2.64
4.80

0.42

As at

3l March 2023

25.3t

99.5 3
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Particulars

As at

3l March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

g) Loar givetr

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Grace Gated Community LLP

Casa$and Millenia Private Limited

Casa Grandc Milestone Private Limitcd

franub Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Lin)ited (Formerly

known as Casagrand Buildcr Private Limited)

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes PriYate Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Coimbatore LI-P

Casa Grande Homes Private I.imitcd

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Ca-sa Grande Realtors LLP

AAK Realt), Services LLP

Gazy Mag Private Limited

Ca-sagrand Horizons Privatc Limited

Casagand Magick Rufy Private Limited

h) Facility Management services

Casa Grande Propcare Private l,imited

i) Reimbursenrcnt Expenses - Recoyered

AAK Realty Senices LLP

iii. Balances outstanditrg at the end of the year

Particulars

t6.73

(0.08)

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

380.43

21.37
0.08

3.55

0.78

7.96

12.16

0.04

48.30

12.77

0.53

5.26

8. t4

4.13

1.06

10.81

0.10

29.88

0.60

0.1 l

3.23

1.20

0.15

0.03

1.37

8) St rre capitsl

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly
known as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

b) Itrterest r€ceivable

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly
kno$,n as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Grac€ Gated Community LLP

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value l{omes Private Limited
Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited

. Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited

Casagrand Exotia Private Limitcd

Casagrand \rivaace Private Limited
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casagrirnd Zingo Private Limited
Casagrand Vistaaz Privatc Lilnited

381.22

0.65

0. l0

284.03

4.05

1.68

0.58

0.420.06

0.01

0.02

3.48

0.18

0.0.r

0.03

0.02

I 1.59

0.10
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Particulars

As at

3I March 2023

As at

31 Iuarch 2022

c) Short tcrm Loatrs and advtrnces

Danub Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited

Casagrand Staylogy Private Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Grace Cated Community LLP

Casagrand Premicr Builder Private Limited (Formerly
knorvn as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Coimbatore LLP

Casa Grande IUilestone Private Limited

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

d) Interest payable

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa Grande |lomes Private Limited

Casa Crande Shelter LLP

Casagrand Millenia Private Linited

Casa Grande Vallam I-LP

AAK Realty Services LLP

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Buildcrs Private Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Casa Crande Smart Valuc Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Magick RuS, Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

Gallante Promoter LLP

Casa Grande Zest Private Limited

Gazy Mag Private Limited

e) Trade psyrbles

Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Enterpriscs LLP

l) Advance to supppliers - Related party
Casa Crande Enterprises LLp

0.01

0.1 I

0.01

0. l8

7 .20

2.00

0.01

0.37

12.12

t,t2'7.93

0. l0
0.04

0.600.30

8.47

0.?1

0.33

0.55

0.85

0.tI
0.03

r 1.28

0.17

0.32

6.76

0.26

3.03

0.0r

0.03

0.07

2.25

2.78

3.04

1.24

0.04

0.56

3.49

312.24

14.01
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Particulars

As at

3l March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

g) Sbort term borrowings

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly

knou,n as Casagland Builder Private Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Gallante Promoter LLP

Casagmnd Millenia Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Linritcd

Casc Grande Horizons Private Limited

Casa Grande Magick Rufy Private Limited

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

AAK Rcalty Services LLP

Particulars

J4. Commitments and contingencies
(a) Comrnitmcnts

Estimated amounts ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

(i) Capital expenditure commitments: (3 I March 2023 - Nil ; 3l March 2022 - Nil)

(b) Contingent liability
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

t 42.30

0.15

0. l0

As at
31 March 2023

?0.2t
20.68

0.l4
4.69

4.44

0.15

1.49

0.54

0.03

0.84

0.26

1.20

As at
3l March 2022

Income tax

Othe| matters* 29.17

29.47

l) A resident of Thalambut village, Nayahr, Kanclrecpuram District, had filcd Writ petition as Public lntcrest

Litigation, sceLing a dircction to thc Govcrnment Officials, namely the Special Commissioncr of Land

Administration and the Dist.ict Collcctor, Kancheepuram, to inspect the village recotds ofThalambur Village, for
the period preceding to the year 1966 to ascertain whcther any encroachment has been made and if any

encroachment is made, to correct the mutation ofthe revenue records and take possession of the Govemlnent land

in accordance with law. The Company had entered into ajoint development agreement to develop a project on part

ofland in Thalambur Village and handed over the units to customers upon completicn ofthc project.
The State Govemment issued G.O.Ms.No.283 dated 09.08.2019 to hold a discreet enquiry into the \,r'hole allotment
process. The Company had filled writ petition challenging the issue of G.O.Ms.No.283 dated 09.08.2019 on the
gcund that the validity ofthe allotment process has already been decided by the tligh Coult in the earlier round of
litigations vide order dated 13.05.2003 in W.P.No.6l65 ot 2000. The leamed Single JuJge has also upheld the
order of the Division Bench of this Court in W.A.No.2785 to 279'l of 2003 dated 2'1.04.2004 and therefore, a

second round ofenquiry cannot be permittcd in rcspect ofthe same. l\,lalagement bclicves that no material liability
will devolve on the Company.

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

Details of Material Contingent liability -

Note - *lt is not practicable for the Company to estimate thc timing of cash outllo$'s, if any, in respect oiabove
matte$ pc[ding rcsolution ofthe respective proceedings.
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(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

35. Segment reporting

The Group is into the business ofreal estate development hence segmenl reporting as per lnd AS 108 is not applicable

f6. Ratio analysis and its elements

Ratio

Current ratio 42.14%

Debt- Equity Ratio -48.1% (ii)

Debt Service

Coverage ratio
0.00%

Retum on Equity
ratio

-62.4t% (iii)

(i)

Inventory Tumovcr
ratio

Trade Receivable

Tunrover Ratio

Trade Payable

Tumover Ratio

Net Capital
Tumover Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Return on Capital
Employed

Retum on
Investment

-34.38% (iv)

-59.69% (v)

37.s0% (ri)

-63.57% (vii)

66.67% (viii)

-23.53%

Variancc
(%)

Reason for
change

2023 vs 2022
2()23 vs

2022

As at 31

March 2023
As at 31

M*ch2022DenominatorNumerator

Eamings for debt

service = Net profit
after taxes + Finance

Cost + Non-cash
operating expenses

Net Profits after taxes -
Pret'erence Dividend

Cost olgoods sold

Net credit sales = Gross

credit sales - sales

retum

Net credit purchases =

Gross credit purchases -
purchase retum

Net sales = Total sales -

sales retum

Eamings before interest
and taxes

Interest (Finance
Income)

Total Debt

Net Profi!

Current Liabilities

Shareholder's Equity

Debt service = Interest

& Lease Payments +

Principal Repayments

Average Shareholder's
Equity

Average Inventory

Average Trade

Receivable

Average Trade

Payables

Working capital =
Current assets - Current
liabilities

Net sales = Total sales -

sales letum

Capital Enrployed =
Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability

Investment

1.99

3.29

0.25

0.53

0.63

17 .4

0.88

1.06

0.1

0.13

NA

1.4

6.34

0.25

t.4l

0.96

43.17

0.64

2.91

0.06

0.11

NA NA

Current Assets
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll anrounls are in Millions, unless otheruise stated)

Explanation for Variance in ratios by more than 257"
l. March 2023 vs Nlarch 2022

i) Increase in Cunent ratio is due to decrease in current liabilities

ii) Decreasc in Debr Equity Ratio is due to impact ofincrease in shareholder's equity.

iii) Decrease in Retum on Equity ratio is due to increase in Average Shareholder's Equity

iv) Decrease in Inventory Turnover ratio is due to reduction in cost ofgoods sold.

v) Decrease in Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio is due to decrease in sales during the year (because of IndAS adoption)

vi) Increase in Trade Payable Tumover Ratio is due to increase in purchases during the year

vii) Decrease in Net Capital Tumover Ratio is due 1o increase in working capital during the year

viii) Increase in Net Profit ratio is due to increase in profit

37, Other statutory information
(i) The Company do not have any Benami properry, u,here any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group lor
holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered witlr ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cunency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or en1i1y(ies) , including foreign entities
(lntennediaries) with the understanding that the Intemrediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner rvhatsoever by or on behalfofT he

Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) , including tbreign entities ([unding Party) rvith
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that The Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whatsocv(.r by or on behalfofthe
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guamntce, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiarics,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that hx been sutrentlercd or.
disclosetl as income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196l (such as. search or survcv or any
other relevant plovisions ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961

38. Expenditurc in foreign currcncy
The company has not rnade any expenditure in tbreign currency.
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(All amounls are tn Millions, unless otherwise stated)

39. Code on Social Security

The Code on Social Security,2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on
which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The
Company will assess the impact ofthe Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effective.
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